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LB 850 , 907

The Committee on Urban Affairs met at I:30 p.m. on Tuesday,
January 17, 2006, i n Ro om 1510 of the Stat e Capi tol,
Lincoln, Nebraska, for the purpose of conducting a public
hearing on LB 850 and LB 907. Senators p resent: Mike
Friend, Chairperson; Matt Connealy, Vice Chairperson; Jeanne
Combs; Abbie Cornett; Ray Janssen; David Landis; and DiAnna
Schimek. Senators absent: None.

SENATOR FRIEND: Good afternoon, everybody. My name is Mike
Friend, and I'm from northwest Omaha, and this is the U rban
Affairs Committee. So if you' re looking for excitement and
fun, then you' re in the wrong room. ( Laught er ) I want t o
introduce the committee. We ' ll have some folks straggling
in, I'm sure, but the committee that's here at the mo ment:
Senator DiAnna Schimek from Lincoln; and to her right, Beth
Dinneen, the committee clerk; to my right, Bill St adtwald,
he's committee counsel; and Vice Chairman of the committee
next to him, Matt Connealy from Decatur; and David Landis,
Senator David L andis, is with us from Lincoln, the "Garden
District." I don't know why. We' re going to have to delve
into that later on ...the "Garden D istrict," I mean.
Senator Ray Janssen is strolling toward the on-deck c hair,
and he' ll be m aking his way around. He has joined us. I
wanted to just say, the green sign-in sheets, if you' re not
familiar with the process, are for testifiers. They are on
the tables by the door s. We need to compl ete th ose.
Anybody that's wishing to testify, including senators, will
have to fill those out. If you' re testifying on mo re th an
one bill, you' ll need t o su bmit a form for each one of
those. And, please, if possible, fill those out prior to
testifying. If you don't wish to testify, and you would like
your name entered into the official record as being present
at the hearing, raise your hand and our page Mimi, who has
been sent o n an errand, will be happy to distribute those.
And if you want to be listed on the committee statement as a
testifier, though, you must complete a green sign-in s heet
and actually testify, even if you just state your name and
position on the bill. And as you begin your testimony, like
we just mentioned, state your name and please spell it for
the record, if you would, and even if it's an easy name to
pronounce and spell. And let's please try to keep testimony
fairly concise. I do kind of keep a S-minute, 10-minute,
15-minute type of interval thing. If you get to 15 minutes
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and you haven't said what you have to say, then we' ve got
probably some issues. Other committee members will drop the
hammer on me. And if you have handout material, we would be
happy to distribute it. And other than that, I would say,
no vocal display of support or opposition and we wil l be
just fine. So with th at, we will start off the hearings,
LB 850 and Senator Beutler has joined us, and welcome to the
committee.

LB 850

SENATOR BEUTLER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
have a lot of rules. ( Laughte r )

SENATOR FRIEND: We ll, yeah.

SENATOR BEUTLER: Mr. Chairman, members of the committee,
this bill is fairly easy to understand. Even if you look at
your green copy of the bill, it's one brief paragraph. In
the current law, i t basically says t hat a city of the
p rimary class may enter into installment contracts, that i s
contracts that a r e pa id in installments over time for the
p urchase of personal property, and then it goes on to make
some other clarifying statements with regard to that power.
And what this bill would do would say that i n add ition t o
personal property, you ca n use installment contracts to
purchase real property. And this, I am given to understand,
is a power, that is the power that is being asked of you
today, is t h e power that cities of the metropolitan class,
cities of the first class, and cities of th e second cl ass
already have. My interest in the bill, I think, came from a
concern of our fire department in that particular instar ce.
They are interested in acquiring land for new fire stations
from time to time, especially you' ll understand that Lincoln
xs growing fairly rapidly and so it is good to get out ahead
of the game a little bit. And if they can buy i n
installments, that helps them make purchases more in advance
before the price of land goes up. So that' s, in a fa ctual
sense, my principal concern, but the same thing would apply
to other kinds of facilities that the city...other pieces of
land that the city might be interested in in the future for
police stations or even for parks or whatever. There will
be three people testifying: the city o f Li ncoln f inance
officer, the city fire chief, and then also the League of

You c er t a i n l y
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Nunicipalities, in case you are interested in asking any of
those particular kinds of questions. And with that, I think
I' ll stop right there and fo llow your admonition to be
s hort , N r . Cha i r m a n .

SENATOR FRIEND: Thank you, Senator Beutler. Are there a ny
questions from the committee? Senator Janssen.

SENATOR JANSSEN: Senator B eutler, why was the pri mary
classes singled out as not being able to do that? I don ' t
under s t a n d t h at .

SENATOR BEUTLER: Senat or, yo u know , th e statutes with
regard to municipalities, as you know, are a l l over the
place. They' ve come down historically at different times
and places, and to solve specific problems. An d you k n ow,
sometimes we go in and we don't want to ruffle any feathers,
so we c hange the l a w just f or our type of city and the
wisdom of that may not be seen by other cities at the ti me
and they d on't want to be a part of it, so you know, on it
goes. And a few years later somebody discovers that t h at
would be a good idea for us, too. So I think it's more a
matter of historic accident than anything. I don 't think
there's anything abou t Lincoln that's particularly
different.

SENATOR JANSSEN: Unles s at that time , y o u know , the
founding fathers of Li ncoln decided, you know, by George,
we' re not going to buy anything unless we can pay f o r it.
We' re not going t o put anything out on a contract where
we' re going to have to meet that obliqation. Be interesting
to know why first-class cities and metropolitan weren' t.

SENATOR BEUTLER: Yeah. You know, it could well relate to a
cultural feeling that was in place...

SENATOR JANSSEN: Y es, it could be.

SENATOR BEUTLER: ...at a particular point in time.

SENATOR JANSSEN: Who knows? Only the Sha dow kn ows.
( Laughter )

SENATOR FRIEND: S enator Landis, you had some.
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SENATOR LANDIS: For y ou, Senator Beutler, or anybody who
follows at your de signation, it's not un common for the
purchase of property to have bidding rules, RFPs. They
have, purchasing of property has a relatively healthy body
of public policy. If we move this authority to not only do
personal property by installment contracts but re al
property, are we changing a standard that I don't know about
in which a city buys real estate normally under this way but
because we' re now using thxs statute, there is a simplified
or different variation? Would zt ski rt any procedural
standards that otherwise exist? A nd w hile I do n't ex pect
you to know the answer to that quest>on, if you would like
to have a designee respond to that, I would be grateful, to
that question.

SENATOR BEUTLER: Senator, you' re correct in surmising that
I don't know that level of detail. Or at least, I t h i n k I
do but I would be reluctant to suggest that...

SENATOR LANDIS: Well, I do see that this says " in addi t i on
to any other powers granted." How ever, what I'm not s u re
is, if by accessing this s ection a esty could buy real
property in a way different than it normally or up till now
buys real property with w hatever safeguards the existing
system has tha t might be short-circuited by this
authorization. That 's why I'm trying to get a comparison
between what's the process here and what's the process that
up tall now has always been the case.

SENATOR BEUTLER: Fai r question.
any o f t h e p r oc e d u r e s . . .

SENATOR LANDIS: It doesn't look like it was attempted t o,

I do n ' t t h i nk i t av o i d s

yes.

SENATOR B EUTLER: ...but I will let Don Herz, the finance
director of the city speak to that.

SENATOR FRIEND: Thank you, S enator L andis. Any other
questions from th e co mmittee for Senator Beutler? Seeing
none, thanks, Senator Beutler, and we will w ait fo r yo ur
c los i n g .

SENATOR BEUTLER: W e ll, I think I' ll stick around.
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SENATOR FRIEND: Okay . We ' ll take proponents, those in
support of LB 850 first. Come on forward. Welcome.

MIKE SPADT: Thank you . Mr. Chai rman, members of the
committee, good afternoon. My name is M ike Spadt. I
currently serve as fire chief for the city of Lincoln. And
I am before you today in support of LB 850 an d ur ge y our
support in mov ing it out of this committee on to the floor
of the Legislature.

SENATOR FRIEND: Mike, could you spell your n ame fo r the
r ecord , p l e as e ?

MIKE SPADT: It's Spadt, S-p-a-d-t.

SENATOR FRIEND: Th ank s .

MIKE SPADT: As Linc oln F ire an d Rescue, we provide a
m ultitude of emergency services to our citizens. And whe n
g rowth occurs, we must ad just t o meet the needs in a
consistent and reasonable configuration. Our difficulty
arises due to the fact that we are behind in keeping up with
growth, and our response times in some of the new areas that
have been annexed by the city are suffering and not meeting
our established goal. With this piece o f leg islation, it
would provide our city leadership with a tool to procure
real property and pay for it over an amount of time. This
would allow u s to plan and budget for future sites with an
e xpenditure that i s spread ou t over seve ral year s .
Historically, our i nfrastructure has been late compared to
growth and has been established through general obligation
bonds. Our most recent facility was built in 1997 in the
Highlands area. We curr ently have a nee d for three
additional fire st ations to better serve our citizens and
reduce our response times in these areas of ne wly a nnexed
growth. Rapi d response times are the key to successful
outcomes regardless of t he em ergency, whether it be a
medical emergency or a f ire. Being able to acquire land
prior to development of an area will reduce the cost to the
taxpayer and al low us to make a more proactive approach to
planning. I'd be happy to answer any q u estions that y ou
have.

SENATOR FRIEND: Thank you . Any ques tions f rom the
committee? Senator Landis.
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SENATOR LANDIS: Mic hael, now you have to buy it outright,
all in one fell swoop, make one payment?

M IKE SPADT: Senat or, i t 's us ually to o la t e by the
time...and when we have competing bond issues by the time we
have identified, o r I have identified as the fire chief,
areas that need additional fire infrastructure or support.

SENATOR LANDIS: Well, you could go back an d you co uld
condemn but you would be paying, what, premium dollars?

MIKE SPADT: Absolutely. And that is the current situation,
especially north and so uth L incoln. Those are built-up
areas and r elatively new pr operties, and ver y litt le
property left for me to ideally...

SENATOR LANDIS: To find to put a fire house on.

MIKE S P ADT: ...to locate one that we' re going to maximize
and get the best bang for our buck.

SENATOR LANDIS: But why does going to an inst allment
contract help you on timing?

MIKE SPADT: It is to identify early, prior to, and not
having to go through a process o f rol ling e verything up
into...because w e acq uire t h e land and build the building
and all the furnishings and equipment that we need t hrough
t he bond i ssu e .

SENATOR LANDIS: So you buy the real estate, hold it until
you can then get the money to do...build a fire...

MIKE SPADT: E xactly.

SENATOR LANDIS : Ok a y .

M IKE SPADT: We can identify the locations based upon ou r
comprehensive plan a s to where we anticipate the city will
grow and be ahead of the curve buying cornfields rather than
commercial real estate.

SENATOR LANDIS: Because this isn't about timing. Th is is
about the kind of con tract you use to purchase the land.
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And as opposed to buying it all at one time, this says y ou
can buy it on installment contract. So I'm trying to get a
h andl e . . .

MIKE SPADT: R ight.

S ENATOR LANDIS: . . .because t h e j u s t i f i c at i on i s t i mi n g b ut
the bill is about the method of contract that you use. And
the answer is, you want to be able to buy land, not u se it
for a while, get to the place where it's built up, then use
a bond procedure and then be able to build a firehouse with
t he bonds .

MIKE SPADT: Absolutely.

SENATOR LANDIS: That's to kind of...okay. Any idea as to
h ow long Lincoln wants to buy a p iece of la n d th a t the y
don't use for the purpose that they' re ultimately going to
get around to using it for when it gets go od...I mean is
there any time line that you' re thinking about here? Do you
want to be five years ahead of the curve or ten years ahead
o f t h e cu r ve ?

MIKE SPADT: I would like to be at least five years ahead of
the curve as far as planning in anticipation of growth, as
far as t h e terms or length of the contract. That might be
better answered by Don Herz who I believe is going to follow
me.

S ENATOR LANDIS: Don might be able to tell u s whe ther a n y
budget or revenue limitations, or any of the limits that
exist on cities as to whether or not this affects this kind
of p u r c h a s e .

MIKE SPADT: R ight.

SENATOR LANDIS: He' ll do that?

MIKE SPADT: R ight.

SENATOR LANDIS: O k ay. Thanks, Mike.

MIKE SPADT: You b et .

SENATOR FR IEND : Thank you . Furt her guestions? S enator
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Janssen.

SENATOR JANSSEN: Mike , what's your r esponse time now?
What's the longest response time you have, because, r e l a t i ng
to this situation of not having something close?

M IKE SPADT: Well, our stated goal within our policies i s
four minutes. And the requirements spelled out in the
National Fire Protection Association requirements is also
four minutes for t hat of a medical emergency, and four
minutes of the first response unit in that of a struc ture
fire followed...to the r emainder of the complement within
eight. We have certain areas of the city again, both north
and south, that e xceed that four-minute goal. We' re six,
eight minutes in some locations with ou r re sponse. And
that's in a perf ect si tuation where all u n its are in
q uarters in their respective districts, which is, and tha t
doesn't happen very often anymore with the frequency.

SENATOR JANSSEN: Th a n k you .

MIKE SPADT: Um-hum.

SENATOR FRIEND: Thank you. Any further questions for Chief
Spadt? Seeing none, thanks for testifying.

MIKE SPADT: Th a nk y ou .

SENATOR FRIEND: Next proponent please.

DON HERZ: Good afternoon, Senator Friend and members of the
Urban Affairs C ommittee. My name is Don Herz, that' s
spelled H-e-r-z. I'm the finance director for the c ity of
Lincoln. An d I'm here today in support of LB 850. Towards
the end of my testimony, I think maybe I can address the
question, Senator Janssen, that you had, and Senator Landis.
This bill w ill provide the city of Lincoln the opportunity
to meet its governmental purposes, especially its p ublic
safety purposes, at a lower cost. The city of Lincoln has
been using its existing authority, as is granted b y the
Legislature, to lease-purchase per sonal property for
equipment items such as ambulances and fire engines. If
this authority were e xtended to include real property, we
anticipate using this tool to purchase land for fire, police
stations, and potentially even park land at a more strategic
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time. Currently, if we have a real estate purchase that we
cannot pay ou t of our current operating budget, we must
delay the land a cquisition until w e are successful in
passing a GO bon d el ection for the construction of the
building. At that time, the cost of t he land will ha ve
escalated and we will have to pay much more for the land.
The legislative authority to lease-purchase real property is
currently available to every city and village in Neb raska
with the exception of Lincoln. This authority is granted to
metropolitan-, first-, and second-class cities, as well as
v illages. We would like to be abl e to ha v e t he same
flexibility in Lincoln. And I believe, in looking at the
timing of this particular section that is amended was put in
place in 1988. An d my best guess i s th at t he city of
Lincoln's bond council had asked for specific authority from
the Legislature to do a lease-purchase of personal property,
a nd ina dvertently forgot to incl ude the term "real
property". That's my best guess. So we' re here just to get
that corrected. If there's any other questions, I would be
glad to answer them.

SENATOR FRIEND: Thank yo u , Nr. Herz. Let me introduce
really quickly Senator Jeanne Combs from Nilligan who also
joined us a whil e ag o, a n d Sen ator A bbie Cornett from
Bellevue. And I believe Senator Landis had a question.

SENATOR LANDIS: Don, any impact on procedures or processes?
Any impact on budgetary limits or the like?

DON HERZ: No. Our expectation i s th a t th i s typ e of
transaction that this wo uld allow would be handled within
our current operating budget. The sig nificant purchase,
which is t he bui lding and any other related thing, would
have to be done through a GO bon d which gives u s the
additional levy authority, and also exempts it from the lid.
So we would be using this on relatively minor or smaller
real estate-type transactions.

SENATOR LANDIS: Ok a y . Th ank you .

S ENATOR FRIEND: Th a n k yo u . Sen at or J ans s e n .

SENATOR JANSSEN: Don, how much land, say in lots, do you
need for a facility?
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DON HERZ: Wel l, I think Mike can answer that specifically
but ' et's say that we needed two acres for a fire station.

SENATOR JANSSEN: Two ac r es ?

DON HERZ: Yeah. W ould that be correct?

MIKE SPADT: Yes .

DON HERZ: If we were buying that, you know, while there is
not sewer service provided, we would probably be able to
purchase that in the $20,000 to $30,000 per acre, as opposed
to $100,000 to $150,000 when it's fully developed.

SENATOR JANSSEN: Ok a y . Th an k y ou .

SENATOR FRIEND: Thank you. Any more questions? Mr . Herz,
I had a qui ck...can you give me...and maybe it's the best
way for me to get my hands around these things. Can you
give me a n example of the situation where the lack of this
authority has either hindered Lincoln or has put you folks,
just as specifically as you can in a recent situation, in a
detrimental type of situation where you think things c ould
have been h andled more fluidly, I guess, if you would have
had this authority.

DON HERZ: Well, I think if we'd had th i s authority, you
know, we pe rhaps could have purchased some land for a fire
station in north Lincoln. Currently, I d on't b e lieve w e
have any l and a v ailable and it 's g oing to be much more
expensive to do at the time that we get a general obligation
bond authority, and we would have to purchase the land at
that point. So that would be one of the examples that I am
aware o f .

SENATOR FRIEND: So, just so I understand, s o wh a t Chi ef
Spadt was talking about, it wasn't a hypothetical. I mean,
there were potentially...and I'm not asking for specifics, I
guess...but I mean there were situations where you know that
something like this could have happened and it didn' t.

DON HERZ: Th at ' s co r r ec t .

SENATOR FRIEND: O k ay. Se nator Janssen.
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SENATOR JANSSEN: Don, coming from my district, I sometimes
take 14th St reet i nto t he city , and it's amazing, it' s
amazing what the growth is north o f the Interstate on
14th Street. Now where is the closest fire station to that
p roper t y ?

DON HERZ: I believe, and and again, this is a question for
Mike. I believe it would be the Highlands fire station.

SENATOR JANSSEN: And how far away is that?

DON HERZ: Oh, gosh, it 's probably a couple of miles, I
t h i n k .

SENATOR JANSSEN: But you can't get there in four minutes.

DON HERZ: Probably not. Especially once w e start go ing
north of the Interstate.

SENATOR JANSSEN: Yes . Cor r e c t .

SENATOR FRIEND: Thank you. Are there any further questions
for Mr. Herz? Seeing none, thanks for your testimony. Next
proponent '?

LYNN REX: Senator Friend, members of the committee, my name
is Lyn n Rex , repr esenting the League of Neb raska
Municipalities. We do strongly support this measure. Other
municipalities have used it ef fectively. It can be a
tremendous cost savings for cxties and villages, and I think
it would b e fo r the city of Lincoln as well. Let me give
you an example where other cities have been able to utilize
an installment purchase contract. For example, you have a
person in a city that decides to move out of town and t h ey
know that the mu nicipality needs to have a park there or
it's in the comprehensive plan to have whether it be a f i r e
station or wh atever it may be . What occ urs is that,
typically, the family or the person will contact the ci ty
administrator or t he mayor and say, you know, I'm leaving
town and I know you' ve been looking for a place, and I ' ll
sell you mine. And, as Senator Landis, I think, noted, that
certainly is a cheaper process than going through eminent
domain if you need that sort of thing. That ha s happened.
It's also happened where someone who has passed away and the
family contacts the city and says, we' re not a b le
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financially to give you the property but we know you' ve been
looking for p roperty fo r "public project X." This is for
sale. We' ll gave it to you for market value. Those are the
kinds of things that you have to have this authority at the
time that that property becomes available. And, of course,
I want to underscore the fact th at th is goes th rough a
p ubl i c bearding p ro c e ss , it goes through authorization in
terms of what the purchase price would be . There is a
process in place for each class of city, basically, in terms
of how they proceed forward. So this is not just done with
a mayor or a city administrator or a councilman just g oing
out and writing somebody a check. That's not how it's done.
And certainly that's not what the process is for the city of
Lincoln either. But this is extremely important and in
terms of why the city of Lincoln was not included in prior
legislation, it comes down to the fact that when those bills
were coming t hrough, L incoln a t that time, for whatever
reason, thought maybe they had the capacity that they didn' t
n eed to have it done by installment contract o r th a t the y
could just simply h ave the money at hand. Not all cities
have the money at hand. So I think that by doing xt through
installment contracts, you certa inly make it more
affordable, you make it doable, and in the long run you save
taxpayer dollars. I wou ld be happy t o respond to any
questions that you might have.

SENATOR FRIEND: Thank you. Are there any q uestions from
the committee for Ms. Rex? Seeing none, thanks for your
tes t >mony .

L YNN REX: Th a n k y o u ve r y m u c h .

SENATOR FRIEND: Are there any more proponents LB 850? No
proponents? Are the re any opponents of the legislation?
Anyone neutral? Wi th that, Senator Beutler, welcome to
c lo s e .

SENATOR BEVTLER: Nr. Chairman, I waive closing unless there
are additional questions or comments.

SENATOR FRIEND: Closing ap pears to be waived. And that
will close the hearing on LB 850. With that, I see
Senator Price, and we will jump right into LB 907. Welcome.
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LB 90

MARIAN PRICE: Goo d afternoon, Chairman Friend and members
of the Urban Affairs Committee. For the record, I am Marian
Pri ce , P- r - i - c - e . I represent the 26th Legislative
District. I am her e to introduce LB 907 on behalf of the
city of Lincoln. This bill is familiar to some of you, as I
introduced similar legislation as LB 1052 i n 2004. The
purpose of this bill is to address two points concerning the
obligation of municipalities and rural or urban...I'm going
to start over again. The reason for this bill is to address
two points concerning the obligation of municipalities and
rural or su burban f ire protection districts in annexation
procedures. The first change is that the annexed d istrict
or portion thereof shall b e co mpensated for as sets,
liabilities, or other ob ligations o f the dis trict in
proportion to the valuation of the annexed area compared to
the assets, liabilities, and other obl igations of the
original district's valuation before annexation. Secondly,
LB 907 eliminates the requirement in current law that those
liabilities or other obligations be paid in full before the
annexation is considered complete. The city of Lincoln has
a representative of its legal department here to testify and
a nswer the technical questions. I thank you for you r
attention. I will be hap py to answer any questions you
might have for me. And I will stay until the entire process
and dec i d e o n c l os i n g .

SENATOR FRIEND: O kay. Thank you, Senator Price. A re there
any questions from the committee for Senator Price? S eeing
none at this time, thank you.

S ENATOR PRICE: Th a n k y o u . Th an k you ve r y m u c h .

SENATOR FRIEND: We will move to proponents first. Those in
f avor o f LB 907 ?

ERNEST P EO: ( Exhib i t I ) Good af t er n oo n , Mr . Ch a i r m a n ,
members of the committee. My name is E rnest Peo. The last
name is spelled P-e-o. I'm chief assistant city attorney
for the city of Lincoln, Nebraska, and I'm here in support
of LB 907. As was mentioned previously, this is kind of a
repeat of a bill that was offered in 2004. The language
before you is substantially identical to the language that
was in the committee amendments when the bill was sen t to
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the floor o f the Legislature, however never came to a vote
during that term, and we' re seeking to have it go back to
the Legislature again this year . Basic ally t here is a
conflict in the two statutes regarding annexation of
property from a fire pr otection d istrict. There is a
general statute that deals w ith sanitary improvement
districts, road improvement districts, and fire pr otection
districts that was on the books prior to a specific statute
being added dealing with fire protection districts itself.
And this conflict between the language of the two statutes
kind of puts a cloud over the city of Lincoln as to what
i sn ' t h ap pe n i n g when w e d o ann e x p r ope r t y . Und er our
ordinances for primary class cities, some annexations of
property are deemed automatic when a party final plats their
land and i t 's approved, it's deemed automatically to come
into the city limits, zf it's contiguous. The statute that
we' re concerned about says that annexation of land within a
rural fire protection district is not complete until d ebts
and liabilities are sa tisfactorily paid for. That ' s in
conflict with the prior statute which just ba sically says
annexation is complete when your land is annexed, you have a
duty and r esponsibility to pay your prorata share of those
obligations. But that's something that can happen after the
fact. In f a ct, it al most h as to beca use th a t sta tute
requires that you go to district court and have that court
approve a settlement agreement establishing and a pproving
that sharing of responsibilities. The city has encountered
a slowness on dealing with fire pr otection d istricts and
working out those type of agreements. Frequently, it's due
to the fact that the obligation that would be assumed by the
city is so nominal that it costs more to hire an att orney
and go to court t han to receive your payments. And so I
think people just step back and say let's just no t ev en
worry about it. In the last year or so, we have worked out
an arrangement with the So uthwest Rural Fire Pr otection
District to look at all annexations that incurred during a
single year, and just have one agreement. And so we' re not
really intending to have annexation be held in abeyance
while we wait for that to happen, and I think that's more an
economic incentive for everybody to work to gether. We
reduce the fire protection districts' costs, they only have
to hare an attorney once a year to lo o k at all of the
annexatxons that oc curred. It m ight be 1, it might be 0,
but sometimes maybe it's up to 3, 4, or even 5 that occur in
sometimes very nominal small area. They don't justify an
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independent evaluation each time an annexation occurs. So I
think we' re trying to resolve that. We' re also trying to
consolidate and make the language between the two statutes
the same as to wha t is the responsibility of the city to
pay. The fire protection district statute 35-514 just says
you will pay your share of the obligations. It doesn't give
the city any credit for any assets that the district might
have in satisfying that de bt. The other statute d o es
provide for that type of properly shared arrangements. Back
in 2004, the city did analysis of all the annexations that
we had occurred from 1996 through that date, and calculated
them according t o th e formula that I have in my written
testimony, and determined that a lmost in every i nstance
there would be mor e assets than liabilities that the fire
distract had after that annexation. And we don't try to get
a proportionate share of assets when there's no debt . We
only want a share of the assets to apply against a debt that
we might have to assume. So as I said, in most instances
there's been really no impact on fire protection districts
by annexation. It's costly and expensive for them to go to
court to have something approved, and we think by
consolidating the la nguage o f the two sta tutes so that
they' re more identical, the type of proc edure that we ' re
utilizing would be fai r a nd ben eficial to everyone. I
believe there will be a speaker coming forward later that' s
going to propose an amendment to require notification to the
fire protection districts when an annexation is going to
incur. We don 't have an y ob jection to that type of

they' re specifying, ten days, works for second-class cities
but not necessarily for the city of Linc oln. Our state
statute requires only f ive days' notice, and our charter,
eight days' notice. And I think to maybe more simplify i t
would be that you have to give the statutory notice for your
class of ci t y might b e better than having a date certain
w ould simplify our city clerks preparing notices that y ou
don't have to be trying to have a catch list of specialized
notices that require a different time li ne. With that ,
unless the re's any ques tions, I would te rminate my
testimony.

SENATOR FRIEND: Thank you, Mr. Peo. Senator Landis.

SENATOR LANDIS: A city annexes, t akes o v er, pays a
proportional sha r e of assets and liabi lities and

notification. I do believe that the amount of time that
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maintenance, starts to run a fire and rescue service to the
a nnexed a r e a s .

ERNEST PEO: Ri ght .

SENATOR LANDIS: What is the source of payment for those
portions of liabilities not otherwise covered by the cit y
but which will be extinguished when the service moves to the
city? I mean, the tax base, I assume, will move to the city
o r wh at ev er . How will th e fi r e district m eet its
obligations when it's no longer providing fire service, the
annexation is complete, and the city has paid 80 percent of
the liabilities?

ERNEST PEO: Wel l, hopefully the remaining period t h at' s
needed for th e fire pr otection district to service is so
reduced in area that their cost will be substantially less.
They will a lready have their fire protection equipment on
hand, so they probably have more than t hey a ctually even
need. As their se rvice a rea is reduced, their needs are
reduced proportionately. So t hey sh ould have sufficient
e quipment to man age t hemselves. Typi cally these a re
volunteer fire departments, so th e y don 't re ally have
salaries and e xpenses in that na ture. So their major
concern is their bonded indebtedness. That's what's paid for
by their tax assessments, and that's what we would be paying
a fair share of through our formula of calculation, that if
the value o f a fir e district is $10 million and we annex
p roperty having $1 million worth of va lue, w e wo uld ow e
basically 10 percent of th eir bonded indebtedness. We ' d
h ave to give them a lump sum payment to pay down, s o that
the tax base will cover the remaining 90 percent. So that' s
kind of a simplified version of how we look at it.

SENATOR FRIEND: Thank you. Senator Connealy.

SENATOR CONNEALY: But under the current scenario, they owe
$10 million, you pay a mxllion of it but you don't get to go
after the $2 million that they have in the bank.

ERNEST PEO: Yeah. T h at's the issue. Sometimes they have
several hundred thousand or money in the bank that could be
applied to that debt or would be...if we annexed everything,
we would assume all assets and all liabilities. So if we
only annexed 10 percent, we assume that we' re entitled to
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o nly assume 10 percent of their obligations and, i f the y
have assets, to apply 10 percent of that assets against the
d ebt we would have to pay to them. I t h ink that's just a
fair analysis, and that was an analysis that was approved by
the Nebraska Supreme Court, that formula, back in 1987 when
they were interpreting the statute i n exi stence a t tha t
t i me .

SENATOR FRIEND: Senator Schimek had a question.

SENATOR SCHIMEK: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chairman. M ine is a
process question. I don't recall what happened to this bill
in 2004. Did it come out of committee unanimously?

ERNEST PEO: It came out of committee.

SENATOR SCHIMEK: Is it a possible consent c alendar b ill?
I'm just wondering what we' re going to do with this bill if
we do advance it from committee. And you may not know the
answer to that, and that's okay.

ERNEST P EO: Yeah , I don 't recall. I think it came out
u nanimously. It wasn't put on...I don't remember if it wa s
put on co nsent but it dad come out. It just didn't get to
the floor for a vote on the floor.

SENATOR SCHIMEK: So ...okay. Because unless it is a consent
calendar bill, I'm not sure we would actually get to it .
That was my c o n c e r n . Than k y ou .

SENATOR FRIEND: You bet. I hei>eve it died on General File
with the commrttee amendment in a 60-day session.

SENATOR SCHIMEK: Bu t did rt come out...

SENATOR FRIEND: Yes .

SENATOR SCHIMEK: . . . unanimous l y ? Th a nk you .

SENATOR FRIEND: Well, I don't know if it was unanimous.
Sorry. Senator Janssen had a question I believe.

SENATOR JANSSEN: Some of the area s th at say wou ld be
annexed, would t hey be just the municipal fire district or
would there be some rural duties there, too? Would there be



Transcript Prepared by the Clerk of the Leqislature
Transcriber's Office

Committee on Urban Affairs
J anuary 1 7 , 200 6
Page 18

LB 907

a rural fire protection district along with it?

ERNEST PEO: T h at's the only thing that we have surrounding
Lincoln is the rural fire protection districts, and that' s
what we' re annexing. And usually they' re valued under
agricultural classification for value so, as we expand, we
intrude into their b oundaries and a r e ta king off small
portions piecemeal as development occurs to the city. And
they wouldn't have the capacity to handle that future type
of urban density that would be put on this land.

SENATOR FRIEND: As S enator Janssen i s contemplating h is
n ext mov e . . .

SENATOR JANSSEN: No , n o , I ' m d one .

SENATOR F R I E ND: ...are there any other questions at the
moment for Mr. Peo? Seeing none, thanks for your testimony.
Are there any other proponents at this time? Proponents?
Are t h e r e a n y . . .okay, a proponent. Welcome.

JERRY S T I L MOCK: (Exhibit 2) Thank you. I t h ought there
were others and I was going to try to go last. M y name is
Jerry Stilmock, S-t-i-l-m-o-c-k, lobbyist, testifying on
behalf of th e Ne braska Stat e Volunteer Fir efighters
Association in a soft support. When LB 1052 was before the
committee back in 2004, we had opposed because of the narrow
language that was used in that particular bill. I had urged
the committee t o qo back and rev isit t ha t comm ittee
amendment, the p roposed committee amendment to LB 1052,
AM3078. In there xt spreads out the type of language that
we were speaking of in terms o f the different types of
obligations that might arise, the different liabilities that
might arise, and not just net bonded indebtedness as it was
couched in LB 1052 . So we would much prefer to ask the
committee counsel to go back t o th a t committee amendment
that was talked about. One of the things that I think we' re
concerned in rural areas is notification. And Mr. Peo spoke
of that because I spoke with him about it early on in the
process to send out, the municipality be charged w ith the
responsibility to send ou t noti ce to the fire protection
distract that, xn fact, annexation is taking place. And the
reason xs twofold: number 1, to know what's qoing on ; but
number 2, because once that annexation starts there's that
issue of when, if the parties, the municipalities and the
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fire district, are unable to work out an agreement as to the
compensation, the payback for assumption and payment of
liabilities, when does the cause of action accrue for that
fire district to go into court. An d if that annexation
occurs and the fire district doesn't have notice up front,
what happened back in the Nillard case that Mr. Peo referred
to, back in 19 87, the Nillard fire district waited years,
years after the annexation. And so it created an issue of
when was it proper for the Nillard fire district to bring a
lawsuit against Omaha because they were unable to work out
their differences? Part of the problem in that Nillard case
was the statute of limitations, for a portion of the
decision had already lapsed and Nillard was out of time in
one part of it. So I propose some language to suggest early
notification. Within the statute as it's written now, there
are some inconsistencies. The statute that we' re dealing
with in LB 907, 35-514, uses the words that the area s hall
be a utomatically annexed from the boundaries of th e
district. Two sentences later in that same statute it says
that except, that before the annexation is c omplete, the
municipality shall pay . And I think the bottom line is,
everybody in the room is i nterested in who's going to
provide the f ire protection, who's going to provide the
rescue services for those people in the community. Is it
going to come from the municipality or is it going to
c ontinue to come from the rural district? And I thin k
t hat's a ke y item f o r the committee to address and to
consider to make sure that we do have a stopgap so that the
inconsistencies in the statute that I' ve referenced, as well
as in S ection 31-766...we have another portion in 31-766
that states that the boundaries shall become effective on
the date the decree is entered. Mow "the decree is entered"
we' re talking about, that's the district court decree. And
that district court decree comes into play under one of two
examples: either we have a settlement agreement, we walk
into court and the district court approves the settlement
agreement and the de cree is entered, or we could be years
down the road because there has been no agreement, the issue
is litigated between the municipality and tne rural district
and we have this language, as odd as it may seem, that says
the change of boundaries shall become effective when the
d ecree is entered. So there are some inconsistencies. A n d
I think the important part would be to try to rectify notice
to the fire district that something is happening in the form
of annexation. A nd then, also implore the committee to go
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back and look at that language that the committee worked out
two years ago be cause one of the items that is missing in
today's bill, LB 907, that was present in LB 1052 i s the
language that says that once that annexation is complete,
then the city s h all b egin p roviding fire an d resc ue
services. And I'd ask the page if the page could please
come forward so that the senators could obtain a copy of the
proposed amendment which would provide for certified mailing
to the rural, to the f ire di strict b y the municipality.
T hank y o u .

SENATOR FR IEND: Thank you . Are t h ere any questions for
Nr. Stilmock? Senator Landis, you had one?

SENATOR LANDIS: I think we' ve been provided with a cou ple
of versions here, and I see some variation but I'm not sure,
Jerry, that I see the one that you' re talking about. I see
the relevant portion of I.B 907 here and the relevant portion
of AN3078. Because while you' re saying, I want you to go
back and get to the language, hmmm, let me see what it is.
H ere' s t h e AM 3 0 7 8 : "The municipality shall b e r esp o n s i b l e
to pay the dis trict for its share of the division of the
assets, liabilities, and maintenance, or other o b ligations
o f the d i strict i n proportion to the valuation of t h e
portion of the district annexed to the valu ation of the
portion of th e district remaining following annexation and
shall assume responsibility for providing fire an d rescue
service t o the annexed areas." That is what's in LB 204
last year, the one that you like . This one says " the
municipality shall be responsible to pay the district for a
portion of the assets, liabilities, or other obligations of
the district in proportion to the valuation of the portion
of the district annexed to the valuation o f the dis trict
before annexation." End of story. And t h en, I think it
does remain, I guess, moot but aren't they then in con trol
of the fire and rescue operations for that area, Jerry?

JERRY STILNOCK: I think by the committee amendment last
year and u s i ng t h at ph r a se " and sh al l assume , " our
responsibility for providing fire and rescue, it takes care
of the inconsistency which appears in 31-766 that says, the
boundaries shall b e ef fectively changed upon the entry of
the decree. That's one item that y ou' ve tagged o n abo ut
what's lac king in LB 907 that was i n the co mmittee
amendment. The other part is simply the word "maintenance."
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In the phrase that strings the words "assets, liabilities,
or other obligations," the committee amendment two years ago
pulled exactly the same language and mirrored what was in
31-766 to remain consistent, I believe, Senator.

SENATOR LANDIS: Jerry, I'm listening to you . I don ' t
exactly get i t. Is it timing? Is i t that you think the
city's going to hold on and not pay what they should and yet
run an operation .where's the downside that you see ? I
don't sense it in the language, so help me out. Give me the
downside that you' re afraid of.

JERRY STILMOCK: Well, one of the items is what Mr. Peo
recognizes, that ofte ntimes it 's simp l y liti gation
unaffordable because of the amount involved and because of
the technicalities involved and the amount of research and
investigation that wo uld b e necessary. A ci ty would not
h ave to make payment because there's no hammer by th e fare
district to go forward. And that's one of the concerns that
Mr. Peo b r o u gh t up .

SENATOR LANDIS: Who 's providing the service...is somebody
going without getting paid, Jerry? What's the story? The
city is going to be provided fire and rescue at that point
b ut not having paid their share of the previous format o f
providing services. Is that the downside danger?

J ERRY STILMOCK: Ye s .

SENATOR LANDIS: So I b u y 80 percent of the fire truck; I
buy 80 percent o f the hose ; I pay 80 p ercent o f the
d ebt s . . . o r I s ay I wi l l . I ann ex . I s t a r t p r ov i d i n g t h e
services but I haven't finished up the paperwork w ith the
fire district and...

JERRY STILMOCK: Y es, sir.

SENATOR LANDIS: .. .written a check?

JERRY STILMOCK: Y es, sir.

SENATOR LANDIS: This is about getting a check at the time
t he t r ans f er oc c u r s .

J ERRY STILMOCK: Ye s .
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SENATOR LANDIS: If you got a chec k when the transfer
o ccurs , y o u w o u l d b e ha p p y .

JERRY STILNOCK: Er . Yes, happier. Yes. (Laughter)

SENATOR LANDIS: In o ther words, that's the pr oblem. I
d on' t m e a n h a p p y .

JERRY STOLNOCK: R ight, right.

SENATOR LANDIS : But I'm saying your objection is, this
a llows them to do th e service, pay a port ion of their
obligations, you know, under this formula, but we don't see
the need to have the check cleared before they start doing a
fire service and we would like to have the m oney in hand .
We'd lake to have a statutory duty that we get paid.

J ERRY STI LNOCK: Yes .

SENATOR LANDIS: And what's missing from this language is
t hat sense of, we' re going to get pai d before th e fir e
service transitions.

JERRY STILNOCK: That wou ld he lp because we have limbo
happening out there, and it's not getting done the wa y you
described it, and that would help.

SENATOR LANDIS : Than k y ou .

SENATOR FRIEND: Thank you, Senator Landis. Are there any
other questions from the committee? Jerry, that was go od.
I mean that cleared some things up for me. Doesn't change.
I mean, you' re testifying in a pro ponent fashion, and
really, the bo ttom line is, the "er" that you talked about
before is so much better. I me an, I guess the po int is,
this thang is out on the floor. Se nator Schimek brought up
a point earlier, unless it's on the fast tr ack who knows
where it co uld g o. This g ets out to the floor and gets
attached to something, what do we see some s trange things
out there, you know, saying, well, where's the rest of this
language? I mean you' re on board, it's just that it wou ld
look a lot better if that stricken language was in there, I
guess.
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J ERRY STILMOCK: Ye s .

SENATOR FR IEND: But I don't know where I'm going with . I
just don't want to see something, I guess, and I don't think
anybody would, a month from now where things just turn sour
just because that l anguage is not there. And I guess I'm
not looking for your assurance as op posed t o ju st ma ybe
saying that the proponent t estimony i s the proponent
testimony. It's as simple as that.

JERRY STILMOCK: And the reason why we chose to come in as
proponents is because of the nature of what happened two
y ears a g o . . .

SENATOR FRIEND: Yeah .

JERRY STILMOCK: . ..and quite a bit had changed and we just
p refer to see that com m ittee amendment l anguage b e
r e i n s e r t e d .

S ENATOR FRIEND: Yeah. All right. Oka y. Were there a n y
other questions from t h e committee? I'm sorry. Seeing
none, thank you, Mr. Stilmock.

J ERRY STILMOCK: Tha n k y ou .

SENATOR FRIEND: Anyone else in a prop onent ca pacity on
LB 907? Is there any opposition to LB 907? Any opposition?
Anyone xn a neutral capacity? Neutral?

JACK CHELOHA: S enator Friend, members of the Urban Affairs
Committee, my nam e is Jack Che loha. That 's spelled
C-h-e - 1 - o -h - a . I ' m a registered lobbyist for the city of
Omaha. Sorry, I' ll fill out a s heet here aft erward. I
didn't know I was testifying up until two minutes ago. Bu t
basically I'm here just because of some concerns regarding
the language. And I think what we'd like to work on maybe
with the committee is our concerns have to do with if there
is a wholesale annexation of the community or whether it' s
b ecause of annexation or merge, or they u tilize this n ew
entity called a city/county merger and create a municipal
county, there might be some concerns along those lines. So
t ha t ' s why I ' m h er e t od ay . Not to point to any specific
community, but say, for example, we decided to annex a whole
community and they might have a professional firefighter
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organization but t hey also have some volunteers affiliated
with it . There co uld b e some concerns relative to this
language that's being proposed in this bill, and we wou ld
like to be able to at least work through that. So I' ll try
and answer any questions you might have.

SENATOR FRIEND: Thank you, Mr. Cheloha. Questions from the
committee? Senator Schimek, I believe.

JACK CHELOHA: Tha n k you, Mr. Chairman. Jack, I'm assuming
that if a city/county merger goes forward, there would have
to be some legislation that would address a whole bunch of
different questions.

JACK CHELOHA: Right. I think that w ould...you mean fr om
the State Legislature itself...

SENATOR SCHIMEK: Ri ght .

JACK C H ELOHA: ...or things worked out'? Okay. Right. I
thank that's probably true but in the meantime, I suppose as
they look at them, they want to know in adv ance w hat the
costs and obligations would be as it moved forward, so...

SENATOR SCHIMEK: Rig h t .

J ACK CHELOHA: Ri g ht .

SENATOR SCHIMEK: O k ay, thank you.

SENATOR FRIEND: Tha nk you. Were there any more questions
for Mr. Cheloha from the committee? Seeing none, thanks for
your testimony.

J ACK CHELOHA: Th ank y ou .

SENATOR FRIEND: Senator Price...was there any more neutral
testimony? Senator Price to close.

MARIAN PRICE: Tha nk you. Chai rman Friend and members of
the committee, in referring to the committee statement of
2004, voting in t h e affirmative were five of the members:
Senator Combs, Senator Connealy, Senator F riend, S enator
Hartnett, and Senator Janssen. No one voted in opposition.
P resent and not voting was Senator Schimek. And absent w a s
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Senator Landis. And the amendment which has been referred
t o . . .

SENATOR LANDIS : I was bu sy , oka y ? ( Laught er ) I ' m su r e I
had something to do.

SENATOR FRIEND: S enators, that's called a pr egnant pa use.
I knew h e ' d sp e a k u p .

SENATOR PRICE: L isten, this is just for the record, Senator
L andi s .

SENATOR LANDIS: Thank you. Thank you, Senator Price.

SENATOR CONNEALY: We appreciate that.

SENATOR PR ICE : And , list en, if I hadn't been asked the
question, I wouldn't have to give the answer.

SENATOR LANDIS: I did like your bill up until now, Marian,
but I'm n ot so sure it ' s on my l ist of favoritesnow.
( Laughte r )

SENATOR PRICE: Listen. Talk to Senator Schimek. She's the
one who raised the question. Lis ten, th e amendment f rom
last year, from 2 004, has been i n corporated into this
current bill. And I am agreeable to and accepting of the
amendment that's been proposed about the notice. Have you
received a copy of the amendment? All right . And I'm
agreeable to that. And the city of Lincoln would be
agreeable to th i s amendment a lso . And , as you have
questions as yo u begin to sort this out, don't hesitate to
talk to me and I will speak to other sources and I will get
the answer to your questions. And this is my closing, and
a re t h e r e a n y q ue s t i ons ?

SENATOR FRIEND: Thank you. Any ques tions fo r Se nator
Price? Seeing non e , thank you. And with that, I believe
that closes the hearing on LB 907 and the hearings for the
day.


